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(Check One)

|
!E CONDITION lL;:_ Excellent ;{-jjAGood {1 Fair T Deteriorated {J Ruins ) Unexsosed
i i (Check One) I (Check One)
L i ‘:\:j Alrered ] Unaltered ! zd Moved £7] Original Site
DESCRIDE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The TFayattevills Woman's Club, which stands on the wooded lot that

comprises Haritage Squarse, is a large Utro-story Federal town houss
modified by changes in the late ninsteentl

h century. The frams building
five bays wide and four hays deep, is covered with molded weatherboards.
It has a deck-on-hip roof and rests on a high raised basement. The basa
mént, wnich is 1it by small windows with molded architraves and four-

over-four sash, is of brick laid in one-to-four common bond abovs ground

evel and large irregular stones below.

The main (west) facade is dominated by a two-story pedimented
tetrastyle superimposed entrance porca, apparently a replacement for an
earlier one. The first level of the porch has fluted Doric colwrms
supporting a handsome Doric entablaturs. The second level has fliuted
Tonic columns and a plain entavlature. 4t both levels the porch is
enclosed by a balustrade with a molded aandrail supported by turned
balusters. Plain paneled pilasters appear on the facade at the ends. of
the porch, and the elements of the Doric frieze ara repsated across the
facade under the porch at the first lsvel. Thse tympanum of the pediment
is covered with flush sheathing and Ifseatures a sawnwork cartouche.

The central sntrance at the first level is of Victorian design. A
double door is recessaed within wide, splayed revsals and toppad by a
blind transom. Each leaf of the door has an arched glazed panel, whils
tie lowsr portion has horigzontal raised panels with heavy moldings and
appliad ocrnament. The reveals repeat this pattern. The soffit and
transom have moldings to simulate panels, as do the upper parts of
raveals, which are at the same lsvel as the transom. '

The Palladian doorway at the upper level is unusually fine with a
waalth of delicate Federal detail. (It has been suggested that the
earlier entrance at the first level may have resemoled this ona.). Each
leaf of the double door has four raised panels, the lowast ona longer
than the upper three. The twelve-light fanlight is Separated from the

door by a molded lintel that bows out siightly and is enriched by a ban
VO

of cable molding. The wide molded archivolt, which is accanted oy

shallcw gouged ornamsnt, features a moidzd keystone with a bsaded astragal

stri p down the center. Bensath each of tThe sidelights is a rathsr heavy

molded sill ornamented by a band of cacle mslding, bslow which is a

raised panel with concave cornsrs. Fianking the sidelizhts are

Jvmafrlcally molded pilasters that susoort a full entablature. 4 gougsd

oval sunburst appears in each end block, and an elaborately worked zougad
:“chn of ﬁu@ *r*ez . The cornics,

half-sunburst nesarly fills the center pors
adornsd with a caole molding, breaks a3

betweer

The remaining bays at both levels ¢l tha Iaczde and alcong ths sidss
as well have windows with replacement Two-over-iwo sash. Dach is 520 .in
2 surrouwnd composed of paneled resded pilasters whosse unadornsd calts
support & plain, rainar tall entevlaturs. Tha windows ars fitusd with
louverad vlinds. Terminating each facads 1s a cormilcs ornamsated with
small block modillions abova a vand of catla molding. Tns dack of ths nip

4 3
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roof is enclosed by delicate cast-iron cresting featuring foliated patterns.
On each side of the roof rises an interior chimney of brick with a molded

caps

The interior of the main block of the house, which follows a slightly
modified center-hall plan two rooms deep, has been more heavily overlaid by
Victorian elements than has the exterior. All the mantels, half of the
balustrade of the stair, and much of the woodwork appear to have been in-
stalled during various periods of ownership. In the central hall, as
throughout the house, the walls are plastered above a molded baseboard. In
the front hall is a heavy molded cornice over a frieze with guttas on the
lower edge. The large northwest room is reached through an elaborate late
nineteenth century or early twentieth century entrance, with an outsized
fluted architrave with paneled corner blocks framing a large opening that
features on either side an Ionic colonnette and pilaster on a tall paneled
common base. The rest of the openings in this room--as throughout the
house except for the northeast room on each floor--are framed by simple
symme trically molded architraves with roundel corner blocks. At the windows,
they extend to the floor to enclose a raised panel at the base. Although
these could be the original finish, it seems more likely that they were in-
stalled during the early or middle years of the ninsesteenth century. This
room contains a Victorian mantel of white marble said to have been taken
from another house in Faystteville. It features freestanding colonnettes
supporting a three-part frieze. The end blocks have floral ornament, while
the center tablet features a pair of doves in a horizontal oval. The
southwest room is finished similarly, except that it has a threse-part wooden
mantel with small freestanding Tonic colonnettes. The southeast room has
a wooden mantel featuring brackets and turned engaged posts. The northeast
room, though it has a mantel similar to that in the southeast room, has,
unlike the other rooms, simple molded architraves around all openings, a
chair rail, and no panels beneath the windows.

At the rear of the hall it appears that some changes in the arrangement
of walls and stair may have been made, but their exact nature is not apparent.
At present a wide elliptical arch frames an opening along the south wall.

The arch, which has a narrow molded archivolt and a paneled soffit, springs
from paneled pilasters, providing access to a narrow space (normally part
of the southeast room) off which open the doors into southeast and south-
west rooms. The purpose of this arch and the space it opens into is not
clear; perhaps it was a result of the era when this floor was used as a
bank. At the rear of the hall is a double door, apparently original, with
flat paneling on the inside and flush paneling without, beneath a two-
light transom. Rising along the north wall of the hall is a stair which
ascends in two flights with an intervening transverse landing to the
second floor, and in two more flights with a landing to the attic. It was
originally a Federal stair and still retains its delicate wave-pattern
bracket at each tread. The first two flights have a Victorian balustrade
with massive paneled newel, turnsd balusters, and heavy rounded handrail.
The flights to the attic, howsver, retain the slender square balusters and

GPO 921.724
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delicate, ramped hand rail, suggesting the original appearance of the
entire stair.

The finish of the second floor is much like that of the first. The
Palladian doorway is outlined on the inside with symmetrically molded
architraves with roundel corner blocks, and the other doors and windows are
treated like those on the first floor. The two front rooms have mantels
like that in the southwest room below, and the rear rooms repeat the design
of those in the corresponding lower rooms.

Just east of the Woman's Club is the Oval Ballroom, a small freestanding
structure. It was attached originally to the Halliday house, now destroyed,
which stood several blocks away. The ballroom, an elongated octagon in form,
is a one=-story frame building, measuring approximately twenty by thirty
feet. It is covered with plain weatherboards and has an sight-sided
pyramidal roof above a rather wide frieze embellished only by a narrow
molded band. The building rests on a very low brick foundation. FEach of
the eight sides of the building is one bay wide, with the north and south
sides being slightly longer than the others. The entrance, a replacement
door in a simple molded frame, is located in the north side; the corresponding
south side has no opening. It is said that a small fireplace once appeared
there, but it was described as not having been original. The remaining
sides are marked by large windows with simple frames and plain sills. These
windows, which contain nine-over-nine sash and very delicate muntins, are
flanked by louvered shutters. The windows with theilr shutters occupy most
of each elevation, making the small building seem even more diminutive.

The interior of the ballroom exudes a feeling of elegance and
spaciousness produced by the graceful Adamesque trim and the size of the
windows, which in contrast to their effect on the exterior, seem to expand
the room. Separating the eight bays of the room are fluted Ionic pilasters,
which occur in pairs flanking the long side bays and singly elsewhere. The
torus molding between the volutes features an egg-and-dart motif and the
narrow abacus is ornamented with a band of delicate foliated ornament The
bases of the pilasters project from the molded baseboard.

The pilasters support an extremely handsome plaster cornice that
continues uninterrupted around the room. From top to bottom, this cornice
features a row of acanthus leaves, a dentil course, a band of egg-and-dart
molding, and a wide convex band composed of a bundle of reeding crossed
diagonally at intervals by molded feathers. The ceiling is accented by a
large medallion, with alternating acanthus leaves and feather-like leaves
radiating from the center. This is encircled by a foliated band, which is
in turn outlined by a scalloped floral band.

- The door is framed by symmetrically molded architrave with the center
strip reeded. The corner blocks featurs a delicate lsaf motif. The lintel

GPO 92Y.724
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is nearly covered by an elaborately ornamented horizontal tablet featuring
crossed plumes and floral designs in low relief, flanked by semicircles

with radiating curvilinear patterns.

The remaining bays contain windows set in similar architraves,
with plain corner blocks and no ornamental tablet. Each architrave
to the floor, framing a single flat panel. The woodwork, including
molded sills, is curved to conform with the oval shape of the room,

but
extends
the
and the

windows are flat; the elements are gracefully integrated, with the sills

and lintels having their outer sides straight and their inner sides
curved.,

gently

GPO 921.724
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Deeds of 1797-1798 show that at that time Duncan McLeran acquired
contiguous lots on Dick Street in Fayetteville, paying 67 pounds 10
shillings for sach. He probably built the house now known as the
Fayetteville Woman's Club shortly afterward. The earliest record con-
firming its existance is a tax list of 1815 in which the dwelling is
valued at $1,L50. This list also shows that McLeran, a merchant, owned
a store valued at $2,000. In 1818 Mcleran sold his house to Sarah Adam,
the wife of John Adam. Adam then deeded the property to two men who
in 1820 sold it to the Bank of the United States, an arm of the federal
government. The building then functioned as the central office of this
bank in North Carolina. Fayetteville was at this time a major commercial
center handling a great portion of the trade plying the Cape Fear River.
The bank's vault was located in the basement, offices were on the first
floor, and living space for the bank's cashier took up the second story.
In 1830 the bank received $38,863.00 in gold bars from the state's
mines. In the same year North Carolina supplied the gold for $20L,000.00
worth of the $71L,270.00 in United States money coined from gold, and there
began a movement for the establishment of a mint in the state. This
monument culminated in the establishment of the branch mint in Charlotte
in the 1830s. The period in which the building served importantly
as a bank was brought to a close, however, when President Andrew Jackson
vetoed the reissuing of United States bank charters due to expire in 1836.

In 1838 the bank deeded its property to some of its former officers
who in 1839 sold the house to the cashier who had been living in it,
John W. Sandford. Sandford lived in the house Ifor many ysars and after
his death "all that lot . . . on which stands the old Banking House"
was sold in 1873 to Archibald B. Daingerfield for $2,525.00. A. B.
Daingerfield had been granied power of attorney by J. E. P. Daingerfield
in 1870 and probably acted as the latter's agent in this purchase.
J. E. P. Daingerfield was an army officer who ceame to live in the house
when hz was ordered to Fayestteville in connection with duties at the
United States Arsenal thers. His son, Blliott Daingeriield, considered
by many the best painter tne state has produced, was fourteen when the
house was purchased; he 1lived in the house during his adolescencs.
J. E. P. Daingerfield sold the proverty ©vo Lillie E. Slocumb in 1885. It
was during the Slocumbs' tenancy that several zlterations and additions
were made in the late Victorian style. The properiy wes sold by the
Slocumdo estate to . H. Powell in 1920. In 1947 ths Feyetteville ‘Woman's
Club obtained an option to purchase ths house from Powell and executed

1
i
|
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this option in 19L5. The Woman's Club maintains the house in excellent
repair. The ovasement is used for its meetings, while the upper floors are
rented to young working women.

Located next to the Woman's Club is the Ovel Ballrcom, which, according
to local tradition, was built in 1830 on the occczsion of the marriage of
N .
V]

s
John V. Sandford and largaret Halliday. (Fittingly Sandford later was one
of the principel owmers of the now adjecent Woman's Club house.) lMargared

Helliday was ths oldest daughter of the csce berv Hellicay, a promi-
nent man whose residence wes located on Cillespi treet, next to which the
Ul 1d Hellidey house was torn

ballroom was built. Wnen in recent years
dovm, the elegant little bellroom was mcTed to itis present
of tnrese buil : :
were carrisd

The Cvel Bellrocm is one oI thse 5T enm Lcam suyle
In Yorth Carolinz, conteining a2 wealth oI supert vplasisr ornamsnt sxil lully
erplored to create en elegant room with en illusion o spacicusnsss. 1Iv is,
as Themas Yaeterman describec it, "en outsiandinz exarple of a Rezency room
of fine deteil worthy of ¥New Yorx or Philzadelpnie creftsmen''. Ths two
buildings, together with the earlier Nimccks Houss to the south, meke

Heritage Square an arsa of unique ilmporuance, representing the cuality and
variety of fine Federal architecture procduced in nineteenth century
Fayetteville.

GPOU 921.724
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As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), T hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been
evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service. The recommended
level of sig;nificance of this nomination is:

State

National
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He G. Jones

Title Director, Staté Department of

Archives and History

Date 30 March 1972

I hereby certify that this property is included in the
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